
Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting

Wednesday, March 28, 2018
6:00 PM

Council Chambers

1.    CALL TO ORDER

2.    PROOF OF POSTING

3.    ROLL CALL

4.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5.    SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

5.a    Hooksett Municipal Employees – New Hires

6.    SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

7.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES

7.a    Public:  02/28/18
TC Minutes 022818-U (2).docx

7.b    Public:  03/14/18
TC Minutes 031418-U.docx

8.    AGENDA OVERVIEW

9.    PUBLIC HEARINGS

10.    CONSENT AGENDA

10.a    Motion to accept the grant of up to $10,686.37 from the NH Department of Safety Homeland
Security and Emergency Management, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police
Department per RSA 31:95-b: III(a) and to return the funds to the Police Department’s 2017-2018
or 2018-2019 fiscal budget under the overtime line.

Staff Report - Active Shooter.docx
1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/164726/TC_Minutes_022818-U__2_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/165328/TC_Minutes_031418-U.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/154272/Staff_Report_-_Active_Shooter.pdf


Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

Audit & Grant terms.pdf

11.    TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

12.    PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

13.    NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

14.    15 MINUTE RECESS

15.    OLD BUSINESS

15.a    DRA Form MS 232- Report of Appropriations Actually Voted
SR MS 232 2018.docx

2018 MS-232.pdf

15.b    Fun-in-the-Sun 2018 Camp Rates
Staff Report - Fun in the Sun Base Tuition.docx

15.c    Rte. 3A & Hackett Hill Road Roundabout Update

15.d    Town Moderator - Town Board/Committee membership

16.    NEW BUSINESS

16.a    Town Council Minutes - draft to final acceptance
Staff Report - Town Council Minutes - Draft to Final Acceptance.docx

RSA91A-TC Minutes 032818.pdf

17.    SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

18.    PUBLIC INPUT

19.    NON-PUBLIC SESSION

19.a    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or
the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.

19.b    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/154273/Audit___Grant_terms.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/164720/SR_MS_232_2018.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/164721/2018_MS-232.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/164742/Staff_Report_-_Fun_in_the_Sun_Base_Tuition.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/165360/Staff_Report_-_Town_Council_Minutes_-_Draft_to_Final_Acceptance.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/165309/RSA91A-TC_Minutes_032818.pdf


Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

19.c    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

20.    ADJOURNMENT

Public Input

1. Two 15-minute Public Input sessions will be allowed during each Council Meeting. Time
will be divided equally among those wishing to speak, however,no person will be allowed
to speak for more than 5 minutes. 

2. No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any
meeting.Comments must be addressed to the Chair and must not be personal or
derogatory about any other person.

3. Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must be
addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town Administrator,
will determine if the question can be answered at that time. Questions cannot be directed
to an individual Councilor and must not be personal in nature. Issues raised during Public
Input, which cannot be resolved or answered at that time, or which require additional
discussion or research, will be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsible
for researching and responding to the comment directly during normal work hours or by
bringing to the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair reserves the
right to end questioning if the questions depart from clarification to deliberation.

4. Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a subsequent
meeting. 

5. No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the Chair.
Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted during Public Input.

3



TC Meeting Minutes 022818-U 1

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES - UNOFFICIAL1
Regular Meeting2

Wednesday, February 28, 20183
6:00 PM4

Safety Center 15 Legends Drive Hooksett NH 031065
6
7

1.    CALL TO ORDER8
9

Chairman James Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m.10
11

2.    PROOF OF POSTING12
13

Donna Fitzpatrick provided the proof of posting.14
15

A quorum was not yet available.  Chairman Sullivan called on Fire Chief Burkush to provide a 16
brief narrative about the Safety Center and the artifact placed outside of the center.  Chief 17
Burkush welcomed everyone on behalf of himself and Police Chief Bouchard.  He was 18
accompanied by Assistant Chief Colburn and Captain Robie.  He said that several years ago 19
the Fire Fighters Association worked with the Hooksett Happy Helpers in sponsoring an 20
outside park that includes a piece of the fallen World Trade Center on 9/11/01.  He said the 21
work is still in progress.  $18,000 was given to the project and they hope to include the 22
artifact as part of a commemorative monument.  Assistant Chief Colburn said a number of 23
communities in NH were successful in getting pieces from the World Trade Center.  It is 24
unknown whether the piece received by Hooksett was from the first or second tower but it did 25
support a building window.  26

27
Chief Burkush said the Safety Center doubles as an Emergency Operations Center when 28
needed that Fire and Police share.  When activated, town officials have direct contact with 29
the state WEBEOC.  Assistant Chief Colburn said EOC has to have backup and be 30
sustainable for an undetermined amount of time.  He said a year ago they applied for a grant 31
of $67,000 for equipment.  The building required substantial upgrades in IT, furniture and the 32
like, and they wanted the ability to use the room for training so the tables can be stacked as 33
necessary.  Some equipment was donated and DPW helped with painting.  The building had 34
to be rewired for new computers and communications systems.35

36
Assistant Chief Colburn said that Al Dion, former EOC Director, was very instrumental in 37
setting up and designing WebEOC which was considered state-of-the-art technology in the 38
1990s.  He said they are now trying to get one more grant from the state to add an additional 39
dispatch terminal.  Chairman Sullivan asked if the town has ever had to activate the system.  40
Assistant Chief Coburn said the system was activated for the Mother’s Day flood a few years 41
back and two or three other times.  42
     43
3.    ROLL CALL #144

45
In attendance:  Councilor John Giotas, Councilor Timothy Tsantoulis, Councilor James 46
Levesque, Councilor Alex Walczyk, Councilor Robert Duhaime, Councilor David Ross 47
[arrived at 6:30 p.m.], and Chairman James Sullivan.48

49
Missed:  Councilor Donald Winterton, Councilor Marc Miville50 4



TC Meeting Minutes 022818-U 2

51
4.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE52

53
After the pledge, Chairman Sullivan adjusted the agenda to take up Scheduled 54
Appointments, the Public Hearing, Consent Agenda, and the tour of the center.  55

56
5.    SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS57

58
5.a   Hooksett Municipal Employees – New Hires59

60
6.    SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS61

62
6.a    Town Clerk, Todd Rainier and Moderator - March 13, 2018 Town Elections63

64
Todd Rainier, Town Clerk, and Cindy Robertson, Moderator, came forward stating that ballots 65
have arrived for the March 13th election; absentee ballots have all been sent out.  The 66
Supervisors of the Checklist will hold their mandatory meeting on Saturday before the 67
election where people can register to vote.  Registering to vote will then only be possible at 68
the polls.  Voting will take place at the Cawley Middle School from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  Mr. 69
Rainier said he will need one Councilor at the polls during the day and three at the end of the 70
day.  Councilor Duhaime said he will be at the polls during the day since he is not on the 71
ballot.72

73
At 6:27 p.m., Chairman Sullivan opened the public hearing (Agenda Item 9.a) and read the 74
public hearing notice to notify and explain to the public that the following warrant article has 75
been placed on the March 13th, 2018 ballot for the town elections: Article 22 “To see if the 76
town will vote to allow the operation of KENO within the town pursuant to the provisions of 77
NH RSA 284:41 through 51”.  No comments were made on the matter.  Chairman Sullivan 78
will close the hearing later in the meeting.79

80
The Chairman adjusted the agenda to receive Public Input (Agenda Item 12).  81

82
John Cooperider, along with two of his neighbors, all residents of Brook Side Community, 83
came forward to ask the Council to consider installing a traffic regulating device at the 84
junction of State Route 3 and either Dartmouth Street or Hunt Street.  Dartmouth Street is 85
adjacent to the Brick House.  Mr. Cooperider said that Brook Side is a 55-plus community 86
with 93 homes.  Most residents are in their 70s.  He said getting in and out onto Route 3 has 87
become more hazardous with the increased traffic, and especially so in the wintertime.  Mr. 88
Cooperider said he understood Route 3 is a state road and asked for the Council’s guidance 89
in the matter.  Chairman Sullivan asked Mr. Cooperider to get in touch with Administration 90
who can help him and his neighbors work through the process.  Administration can then get 91
back to the Council with recommendations.  Mr. Cooperider left a petition which is attached to 92
these minutes.93

94
Chairman Sullivan then took up Agenda Item 10 Consent Agenda.95

96
Councilor Duhaime moved to remove item 10.c from the Consent Agenda.97

98
Councilor Giotas moved, second by Councilor Levesque to approve Consent Agenda items 99
10.a and 10.b as presented.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.100 5



TC Meeting Minutes 022818-U 3

101
Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Ross to approve Consent Agenda item 10.c 102
to approve the recommendation of the Board of Assessors for Case Nos. 17-002 and 17-003.  103
Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.  104

105
Chairman Sullivan adjusted the agenda to address Agenda Item 16.b Well Radius 106
Encroachment Easement Request by Lamontagne Builders, Inc. on a town Right of 107
Way – 48 Pine Street.108

109
Jim Donison, Assistant Director of Public Works and Town Engineer, through the staff report, 110
indicated that a request was made for a well radius encroachment easement by Lamontagne 111
Builders, Inc. (LBI) onto the Pine Street right-of-way as part of the construction of a 112
residential house located at 48 Pine Street, Map/Lot 5/86.  The existing lot is narrow and the 113
75 foot well radius will extend onto the roadway right-of-way.  114

115
Steven Keach, President of Keach-Nordstrom Associates came forward stating that 48 Pine 116
Street came to exist in its current dimension and configuration several decades ago as a 117
result of takings by the state for construction of I-93 and associated realignment of Pine 118
Street.  An entity of LBI acquired the parcel in 2017 with the intent of constructing a single 119
family dwelling on the land.  Prior to taking title, LBI contracted with a local septic system 120
designer who updated the design plan which was approved by the NH Department of 121
Environmental Services (NHDES).  Hooksett’s Code Enforcement Officer issued LBI a 122
building permit for residential construction in 2017.  123

124
Mr. Keach does not believe that either NHDES or the town erred.  He suggested a remedy 125
could entail LBI executing and recording a NHDES Standard Release Form which both 126
acknowledge the protective well radius at 48 Pine Street extending beyond the boundaries of 127
the parcel and holds the owners of the abutting property harmless in the event the well 128
becomes contaminated as a result of the decreased setback distance.  Mr. Keach asked that 129
the Council review and approve a draft copy of the Easement Deed.  If acceptable, he will 130
have LBI sign and record the original at the Merrimack County Registry of Deeds.  Mr. Keach 131
said this action is consistent and fully compliant with applicable statute.132

133
Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, to approve a water well radius 134
encroachment easement on the Pine Street right-of-way, with easement language to be 135
approved by the Town Attorney, for a proposed well to be located on Map/Lot 5/86, 48 Pine 136
Street. The well is to be constructed by Lamontagne Builders, Inc. as part of a new 137
residential house.  Councilor Tsantoulis asked if there could be ramifications later for the 138
homeowner and whether septic was private.  Mr. Keach said it’s a sanitary radius; if road is 139
discontinued it would foreclose the ability of the successor owner and that the septic is140
private.  A vote on the motion was called.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.141

142
Chairman Sullivan than took up Agenda Item 16.d Hooksett Village Water Precinct 143
Easement Across Town Land, Map 7/Lot 18.144

145
Mike Heidorn, Superintendent of the Hooksett Village Water Precinct, came forward.  He was 146
accompanied by Todd Smith, Chair of the Water Precinct, and Kent Brown of Brown 147
Surveying and Engineering, who remained in the audience.  Mr. Heidorn sought the Council’s 148
support in approving an agreement between the Hooksett Village Water Precinct and the 149
town to acquire an easement across the town land designated at Tax Map 7, lot 18.  The 150

6



TC Meeting Minutes 022818-U 4

easement will provide for the construction of a proposed water main extension from a new 151
tank on the west side of Route 93 to Route 3A.  Councilor Duhaime said he appreciated the 152
precinct coming before the Council and asked for more cooperation from the precinct going 153
forward.  Mr. Heidorn said they do want to get out in front of the Council a lot more than has 154
been the case in the past.  He said they have also had public information sessions held at the 155
library.  In response to Councilor Tsantoulis, Mr. Heidorn said the purpose for the 156
construction is twofold: pressure and storage.  He said the tank will hold one million gallons –157
five times what they currently have – and water use triples in the summertime.158

159
Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, to approve a 30-foot wide water main 160
easement with Hooksett Village Water Precinct across town land, Map 7, Lot 18, upon review 161
and approval by the town attorney.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.162

163
6.b    Town of Hooksett Fire-Rescue Dept. Administration - Emergency Operations Center Tour 164
and CPR/AED/First Aid Town Council Training165

166
6.c    Town of Hooksett Police Dept. Administration - Proposed Renovations Tour167

168
Councilors toured the facility and were provided with abbreviated CPR/AED training by 169
Captain Stalker.  Captain Stalker went over what CPR does and that CPR is used 360,000 a 170
year countrywide; Hooksett does approximately 24 to 30 per year.  He said increased 171
research has shown that chest compressions, and not so much mouth-to-mouth, are keeping 172
people alive.  He said the Fire Department conducts 15 to 20 classes for the public every 173
year and that CPR instruction is now built into the curriculum at Cawley Middle School, done 174
when students are in the 7th grade.175

176
Captain Stalker said that AEDs help the chance of survival when someone goes into cardiac 177
arrest.  He said if an AED is deployed within the first minute of cardiac arrest, chances are 90 178
percent.  Hooksett has doubled the number of AEDs; they are at the town offices, in patrol 179
cars, schools, courthouse, library and at SNHU.  Chris McMurray came up to provide a 180
demonstration on how AEDs work.  He said the first thing to do is call 911 for help; they will 181
know if an AED is accessible, then check for responsiveness; and position hands one over 182
the other and compress to the beat of the song Staying Alive.    183

184
7.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES185

186
7.a    Public:  02/14/18187
TC Minutes 021418-U.docx188

189
Councilor Levesque moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to approve the Town Council 190
meeting minutes of February 14, 2018, as amended.  Motion passed, 6-0 [Councilor Giotas 191
abstained].192

193
7.b    Non-Public:  02/14/18194

195
Councilor Levesque moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, to approve the Town Council 196
meeting minutes of February 14, 2018, as presented.  Motion passed 6-0 [Councilor Giotas 197
abstained].198

199
8.    AGENDA OVERVIEW200

201
7



TC Meeting Minutes 022818-U 5

9.    PUBLIC HEARINGS202
203

9.a    Public Hearing for the Town Council to notify and explain to the public that the following 204
warrant article has been placed on the March 13, 2018 ballot for the town elections: Article 22 “To 205
see if the town will vote to allow the operation of KENO within the town pursuant to the provisions 206
of NH RSA 284:41 through 51”.   207
022818 KENO Public Hearing.doc208
KENO 2018.pdf209

210
10.    CONSENT AGENDA211

212
10.a    Accept the donation of a $250.00 donation from the Vietnam Veterans of America, Inc. to 213
the Town of Hooksett, NH for the Hooksett Fire Rescue Department under RSA 31:95-b III (b).214
Staff Report - VVA_donation.docx215

216
10.b    Motion to accept the reimbursement of $972.98 from the State of New Hampshire 217
Department of Safety, Homeland Security and Emergency Management Training & Exercise, to 218
the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department per RSA 31:95-b: III(b) and to return 219
the funds to the Police Department’s 2017-2018 fiscal budget under the training and dues line 220
400-4210-294-000.221
Staff Report - Reimbursement.docx222
20180215134656402.pdf223

224
10.c    Assessing - Abatement(s) & Deferral(s)225
Abatements 02282018.docx226

227
11.    TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT228

229
In Dr. Shankle’s absence, Christine Soucie, Finance Director, reported the following:230

231
1) Health Trust will be hosting two meetings.232
2) The age-friendly community project went to Bedford, Chester, and Goffstown.  AARP 233

NH will be reaching out separately.234
235

Lee Ann Moynihan said the revaluation will start shortly, within the next couple of weeks.  A 236
press release will be issued to explain the process to the public and information will be 237
available on the town website.238

239
12.    PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES240

241
13.    NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS242

243
14.    15 MINUTE RECESS244

245
15.    OLD BUSINESS246

247
16.    NEW BUSINESS248

249
16.a    RFP for Telephone Services250
SR Telephone Services 2018.docx251
OTT Communications.pdf252

253
8



TC Meeting Minutes 022818-U 6

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Levesque, to waive the Council rules requiring 254
three bids.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.255

256
Councilor Tsantoulis moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, to accept OTT Communications’257
three year bid for telephone services and have the Town Administrator enter into a contract 258
with them.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.259

260
16.b    Well Radius Encroachment Easement Request by Lamontagne Builders, Inc. (LBI) on 261
Town Right of Way – 48 Pine Street – Taken Up Earlier262

staff report - 2-28-18 Well Radius Encroachment easement on Town right-of-way Pine Street - for lot 48 263
Pine Street.docx264
48PineStreet.Well.020218.pdf265
ISDS_eCA2017060501_Approved_Plan.pdf266

267
16.c    Accept College Park Drive Sidewalk Project as complete268
staff report - feb 28 2018 Accept College Park Drive Sidewalk project as Complete.docx269

270
Councilor Tsantoulis moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, to accept the College Park Drive 271
Sidewalk Project as complete.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.  272

273
16.d    Hooksett Village Water Precinct easement across Town of Hooksett land - Tax Map 7 Lot 274
18 – Taken Up Earlier275
staff report - feb 28 2018 HVWP easement across town land.docx276
4100-02 Overall Proposed Pipeline 50-scale.pdf277
4100-02 Overall Proposed Pipeline 100-scale.pdf278
Letter to JDonison.pdf279
Town of Hooksett Easement .pdf280

281
16.e    Town Personnel Plan - Professional Development Policy for Town Employees282

283
16.f    Community Profile - 1) Pavillion and 2) Blight Properties284
Community Profile.pdf285

286
Councilor Levesque moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to table agenda items 16.e and 287
16.f until such time that Councilor Miville is in attendance since these items were placed on 288
the agenda at his request.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.289

290
Councilor Ross brought up the fact that the Animal Crackers building that has been vacant 291
since 2001 has a roof hanging by itself and what is left of the building is a danger and 292
something must be done about it.  Chairman Sullivan asked that Administration review the 293
regulations on properties considered abandoned and report back to the Council.  294

295
Chairman Sullivan closed the public hearing on KENO at 8:57 p.m.296

297
17.    SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS298

299
Councilor Levesque said the Recycle and Transfer Committee met last night.  A gentleman 300
from Casella attended and reported they changed their rules on what they will accept in 301
recycled material.  He said everyone is stuck with what to do with recycled material.  They 302
discussed a number of ideas but will continue with two separate pick ups.  The feeling is that 303
eventually things will ease up.  Perhaps there will be no more recycling of glass because of 304
its weight which is more expensive - $45 a ton.  Councilor Giotas said the town never made 305

9



TC Meeting Minutes 022818-U 7

money on glass and Diane Boyce, DPW Director, is working up some sort of public 306
notification.307

308
Councilor Ross again expressed his disagreement with having taken the recycling program 309
in-house.  He said it has been a “big waste of money” and has not “saved the town a dime”.  310
He asked if any research had been done to privatizing the program.  Councilor Levesque said 311
that “once we privatize, we will never go back because we won’t have the set-up in place”.  In 312
addition, a private company will have to make a profit.  Chairman Sullivan said the matter will 313
require more discussion with Administration and the Advisory Committee and, at an 314
appropriate time, he’ll ask the committee to be prepared for a discussion with the Council on 315
the issue.316

317
Councilor Giotas said that Kathie Northrup, Chair of the Heritage Commission, has done a lot 318
of work on getting medallions done of the Lilac Bridge that come in three different colors and 319
are for sale at $10 each.  Chairman Sullivan said the funds raised from the sale of the 320
medallions and other items are used to finance other endeavors that the Heritage 321
Commission has done over the years.  Councilor Giotas also reported that the town has the 322
copyright for the Hardy Book and the Commission has authorized 100 copies be printed.  323
Chairman Sullivan said that May 20th has been designated Hooksett Heritage Day with 324
activities planned from 11:00 to 2:00 to include a tour of the Old Town Hall and 325
acknowledgement of Governor Head’s 100th birthday.  He said Governor Head kept all the 326
records on all veterans who served in the Civil War, he was friendly with a number of 327
presidents, and instrumental in changing child labor laws while he was Governor.  He ran for 328
State Senate in 1878 and lost because people were writing in the wrong name Nate instead 329
of Nathaniel, and those votes for Nate were not valid.  Councilor Giotas said Joymark will 330
convert DVDs to digital files at a lesser (more than half) cost than previously expected.  331
Kathie Northrup has done a lot of work on this.  Chairman Sullivan said Administration has 332
been very helpful on working out the copyright issue.333

334
Councilor Walczyk said they met with SNHU on February 15th.  Brought up the issue of lights 335
at nights and they were not aware; they are going to look into it.  It was a good meeting that 336
lasted about an hour.  Toured the facilities to see what they may have to offer the town.  They 337
do want to work with the town more and keep the dialogue open.  They have Career Services 338
which might be an area to leverage.  Dr. Shankle and Councilor Winterton were also in 339
attendance.340
  341
Chairman Sullivan said two windows at the Old Town Hall came out very nice; a third window 342
will be in very soon.  The committee is looking at next steps and cost estimates for electrical, 343
wall, and plumbing work before the end of the year.  Things are moving along at a good pace.  344

345
Councilor Duhaime thanked Nick Germain for his presentation to the Parks and Recreation 346
Advisory Committee who have a number of new members.  There was a lot of emotion 347
surrounding the fact that the Hooksett Youth Association has no one running for office.  The 348
survey is finished; there were 130-plus respondents.349

350
Chairman Sullivan thanked Chiefs Burkush and Bouchard for hosting the meeting.351

352
18.    PUBLIC INPUT353

354
19.    NON-PUBLIC SESSION355

10



TC Meeting Minutes 022818-U 8

356
20.    ADJOURNMENT357

358
Councilor Tsantoulis moved, second by Chairman Sullivan, to adjourn the meeting at 9:20 359
p.m.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.360

361
362
363
364
365
366

Note:  The town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for 367
documents referred to in the minutes, reading file materials, and/or ancillary documents that 368
the Town Council has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council’s prior approval of 369
the documents.370

371
Respectfully submitted,372

373
374
375

Suzanne Beauchesne376
Recording Clerk377

378
379

11



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 1

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES - UNOFFICIAL1
Regular Meeting2

Wednesday, March 14, 20183
6:00 PM4

Council Chambers5
6
7

1.    CALL TO ORDER8
9

Chairman James Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m.10
11

2.    PROOF OF POSTING12
13

Finance Director, Christine Soucie, provided proof of posting.  14
15

3.    ROLL CALL #116
17

In attendance:  Councilor Donald Winterton, Councilor John Giotas, Councilor James 18
Levesque, Councilor Marc Miville, Councilor David Ross, Chairman James Sullivan.  19
Councilor Alex Walczyk arrived at 6:09.20

21
Missed: Councilor Timothy Tsantoulis, Councilor Robert Duhaime22

23
24

4.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE25
26

Following the pledge, Chairman Sullivan called a moment of silence for Lionel Duhaime, 27
father of Councilor Duhaime, who recently passed away, and for the recent passing of Dr. 28
Shankle’s father-in-law.29

30
5.    SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS31

32
5.a    Hooksett Municipal Employees – New Hires33

34
Chief of Police Bouchard came forward to introduce Scott Eaton, a new employee who is 35
replacing Angela Bergeron.  She said Mr. Eaton has 14 years of dispatching experience 36
having worked in Hopkinton, Manchester, and Bow.  On behalf of the Council, Chairman37
Sullivan welcomed Mr. Eaton to the Hooksett family and wished him good luck.38

39
6.    SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS40

41
6.a    Town Clerk, Todd Rainier and Moderator - March 13, 2018 Elections42

43
Town Clerk, Todd Rainier, came forward to report on Tuesday’s Election Day as follows:44

45
– there are 10,528 registered voters on the checklist46
– 846 ballots were cast – up from 531 in 2017 and busier than expected for most of the 47

day; four challenge votes where identification was needed; 71 absentee ballots were 48
received49

– supervisors registered 35 new voters at the polls and updated two names on the 50
checklist51

12



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 2

– election results were emailed to news outlets and posted to the town website shortly 52
after 10:00 p.m. election night53

– letters were mailed today to the 14 nominees; five are new to public office54
– most ballot clerks called out due to the winter storm; special thanks to Pat Pipitone and 55

Diane Moul who came in and worked their regular shift56
– the day was a success due to the assistance of local election officials, including 57

councilors, supervisors of the checklist, moderator Cindy Robertson (who was 58
interviewed by Channel 9), and Billie Hebert.59

– while the weather presented a challenge for the second year in a row, the Cawley School 60
custodial staff was on hand all day and kept the walkways clear of snow and floors as 61
dry as possible.  The Hooksett highway crew dedicated at least one plow truck to the 62
school63

64
Mr. Rainier also thanked Matt Lavoie who worked all day.  Don Riley joined the reconciliation 65
crew to assist in the wrap-up process and, as always, was an invaluable resource.  Councilor 66
Miville said he heard that the election notices were buried.  Councilor Ross said the real 67
difficulty was that Whitehall Road was not plowed or treated.  It took numerous calls and a 68
long time before getting someone down there.  Since the town is not allowed to plow a state 69
road, he will bring this to the attention of Hooksett’s state representatives.  The Council 70
thanked Mr. Rainier and all involved for their efforts in making the day a success.71

72
6.b    Annual Board Activity Update - Economic Development Advisory Committee - Delivered by 73
Chairman David Scarpetti 74

75
Chairman of the Economic Development Advisory Committee, David Scarpetti, came forward 76
stating that a lot was happening and they have a great group of committee members.  He 77
said Cathy Lawrence does a great job of communicating with all of the members.  He said the 78
main goal of the committee has been infrastructure on Route 3A and ensuring that current 79
businesses stay and continue to grow.  Two meetings were held at Bass Pro Shop in the Fall 80
to discuss the sewer.  Stu Armett was available to discuss a number of options.  He said 81
Route 3A is shaped like a bone with Exit 10 and Exit 11 and a lot of undeveloped land in 82
between.  The Sewer Commission has stepped up and have become proactive.  He said 83
Steve Marro, Merrimack County Administrator, came to speak at a meeting and will be back 84
on the 21st to discuss how he can help us.  He’ll be bringing one of his associates, Jim 85
McCarry, county grant writer.  The committee has been very busy.  They meet on the third 86
Wednesday of the month and all are welcomed to attend.  87

88
Councilor Miville said that Mr. Marro has advised the committee that there is a lot of federal 89
money available for these kinds of projects and that’s why he’s getting the grants person 90
involved.  Mr. Scarpetti said the committee hopes to visit with businesses in town and learn 91
how “we can help them”.  Councilor Ross asked if there had been any offers or willingness to 92
participate financially.  Mr. Scarpetti said once the sewer extension is in place, more 93
businesses will come on board.  Councilor Ross said that Walmart wanted to put in their own 94
facility.  This should be “watched carefully”.  Perhaps “they were allowed to do things that 95
maybe they shouldn’t have been”.  He continued stating that “it is not our job to help them 96
financially to do what they want to do”.97

98
Councilor Winterton said Walmart did have a site plan that has expired so they cannot build 99
their own wastewater treatment plant.  There has been letters exchanged by the developer 100
and the Sewer Commission.  The developer needed a written commitment or letter of intent 101

13



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 3

that he would be involved.  Councilor Winterton said it is a slow step process and funds 102
cannot be committed without the approval of the voters so the earliest would be July 1, 2019 103
if there were any funds on the town side.  Excited – this should be done and is being done in 104
a measured process.105
  106
Councilor Miville said the Council’s involvement is to encourage the sewer infrastructure that 107
will help with the tax base.  He is fully supportive.  Chairman Sullivan suggested the 108
committee work with the new town planner.  Councilor Miville indicated that come May he will 109
no longer be on the committee.  Councilor Giotas said “if money is available, let’s get it”.  110
Chairman Sullivan thanked Mr. Scarpetti and all of the committee members.111

112
7.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES113

114
7.a    Public:  02/28/18115
TC Minutes 022818-U (2).docx116

117
Councilor Giotas moved, second by Councilor Levesque, to approve the Town Council 118
meeting minutes of February 28, 2018, as amended.  Councilor Ross said that a number of 119
important points of discussion were not included in the minutes and he asked that the 120
minutes be more thorough.  Chairman Sullivan said that in accordance with the rules, the 121
changes proposed will be included in the current meeting minutes.  Councilor Ross moved, 122
second by Councilor Miville, to overrule the action of the Chairman.  Chairman Sullivan 123
looked to Director Soucie for clarification.  Director Soucie said the practice has been not to 124
go back to the original minutes.  Councilor Ross suggested the Chairman was not providing 125
due diligence to an existing councilor.  Chairman Sullivan said he was not disrespecting 126
anyone but wanted to ensure that the Council was “doing it right”.  A vote on the motion was 127
called.  Roll Call #2:  Councilor Miville-yes, Councilor Ross-yes, Councilor Levesque-no, 128
Councilor Walczyk-no, Councilor Giotas-yes, Councilor Winterton-abstained, Chairman 129
Sullivan-no.  Motion failed 3-3 with one abstention.  130

131
8.    AGENDA OVERVIEW132

133
9.    PUBLIC HEARINGS134

135
9.a    Public Hearing to accept the grant and overtime reimbursement of $60,000.00 from the 136
Department of Justice, Division of Public Protection, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett 137
Police Department for a public hearing at the Town Council meeting for the acceptance of this 138
grant under RSA 31:95-b, III (a) and to return that amount to the police department’s 2017-2018 139
fiscal budget salary and overtime lines.140
031418 DOJ Public Hearing.doc141
DTF_staff_report_2018.docx142

143
Chairman Sullivan read the public hearing notice and opened the hearing at 7:21 p.m. and 144
read the public hearing notice indicating the purpose of the hearing is to accept the grant and 145
overtime reimbursement of $60,000 from the NH Department of Justice to the town.  146
Councilor Ross asked if the grant funds would cover overtime costs.  Chief Bouchard 147
reiterated what was indicated in the staff report that the town will continue to pay the officer’s 148
salary and benefits who will be assigned to the NH Attorney General’s Drug Task Force.  In 149
return, the town will receive a $60,000 grant plus any overtime reimbursement.  Councilor 150
Walczyk asked what the training entailed.  Chief Bouchard said the officer is assigned to the 151
task force even though he/she still works for Hooksett.  The Chief said that assignments are 152 14



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 4

generally for three to five years and that the assigned officer is currently under cover.  153
Councilor Giotas asked if a public hearing was necessary to accept grant funds and was 154
informed “yes”.  155

156
9.b    Public Hearing to accept the grant of up to $10,686.37 from the NH Department of Safety 157
Homeland Security and Emergency Management, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett 158
Police Department per RSA 31:95-b: III(a) and to return the funds to the Police Department’s 159
2017-2018 or 2018-2019 fiscal budget under the overtime line.160
031418 HSEEP Public Hearing.doc161
Staff_Report_-_Active_Shooter.docx162
Audit___Grant_terms.pdf163

164
Chairman Sullivan read the hearing notice indicating that the purpose of the hearing is to 165
accept the grant of up to $10,686.37 from the NH Department of Safety, Homeland Security 166
and Emergency Management to the town.  Councilor Ross asked if this was strictly for 167
overtime only.  Chief Bouchard said it was for overtime and supplies.  Councilor Winterton 168
asked if the grant was available even if the exercise didn’t take place.  Chief Bouchard said 169
the training will definitely take place and they’ll be using the school during the April vacation.  170
Councilor Ross asked if the public was being informed and whether abutters had been 171
provided with notices.  Chief Bouchard said her department did want the public to know about 172
the event but did not want to encourage people to watch.  Chairman Sullivan closed the 173
public hearing174

175
Councilor Miville moved, second by Councilor Giotas, to waive the rules to not take action 176
until the next Council meeting. Councilor Ross asked if action needed to take place right 177
away or could it wait two weeks.  Chief Bouchard said Council action would be better sooner 178
rather than later.  Councilor Winterton said he didn’t remember waiting to the next meeting to 179
accept funds.  Finance Director Soucie said it has been the Council’s practice to not take 180
action on public hearings until the following meeting.  Director Soucie said that while no one 181
has been able to find this in the rules, waiving the rule has been practiced for more than half 182
the time.  Councilor Ross felt the practice was a good one since it allows people not attending 183
the pubic hearing a chance to weigh in.  Chief Bouchard said waiting to take action will not 184
hold up anything in any substantive way.  Chairman Sullivan asked that the matter be 185
included on an upcoming Council agenda for further discussion.  Councilor Winterton 186
questioned why the staff report included a recommendation for Council action.  A vote on the 187
motion to waive the rules was called.  Motion passed 4-3 [Councilors Ross, Levesque, and 188
Chairman Sullivan opposed].  189

190
Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Miville, to accept the donation of $60,000 191
from the Department of Justice, Division of Public Protection, to the town of Hooksett for the 192
Hooksett Police Department for a public hearing at the Town Council meeting for the 193
acceptance of this grant under RSA 31:95-b, III (a) and to return that amount to the Police 194
Department’s 2017-2018 fiscal budget salary and overtime lines.  Councilor Ross asked if a 195
compliance audit was required for both small and large grants.  Director Soucie said the town 196
is obligated to include the compliance audit language regardless of the grant.  Expenditure of 197
federal funds totally $750,000 requires a compliance audit.  Councilor Ross asked if reaching 198
that amount was anticipated.  Director Soucie said “no”.199

200

15



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 5

Roll Call #3: Councilor Giotas-yes, Councilor Ross-yes, Councilor Walczyk-yes, Councilor 201
Miville-yes, Councilor Levesque-yes, Councilor Winterton-yes, Chairman Sullivan-yes.  202
Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.203

204
The Council took no action on the Active Shooter training grant in the amount of $10,686.37.205

206
10.    CONSENT AGENDA207

208
10.a    Site Surety Release - $56,620 – SNHU Gustafson Welcome Center Project209
staff report - Mar 14 2018 Site Surety Release $56620 SNHU Gustafason Welcome Site project.docx210

211
Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Walczyk, to accept the Consent Agenda as 212
presented.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.  213

214
11.    TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT215

216
In Dr. Shankle’s absence, Finance Director Soucie provided the following report:217

218
  In follow-up to the Council’s last meeting, the Code Enforcement Officer did go out to 219

the Animal Cracker property and re-opened enforcement action.220
  Easement information from the town attorney on the encroachment matter has not yet 221

been received.222
  Jim Donison’s last day will be Friday.223

224
Councilor Ross asked what reopening the enforcement action meant.  Director Soucie said 225
the property owner was asked to shore up the property in 2016.  After the Council’s last 226
meeting, a letter was sent to the owner asking that he respond within ten days.  Councilor 227
Ross said the property is in severe disrepair and it’s been 17 years that the building has been 228
vacant.  He said the owner hasn’t suffered any consequences and that concerns him since 229
the whole town is affected.  He said no demands have been made of the owner and that 230
seems unreasonable to him.231

232
Councilor Winterton said he didn’t recall in the six years that he’s been on the Planning Board 233
that any site plans have come before the Board.  He asked that Administration research the 234
matter to see if there was any application made to the Planning Board.  Chairman Sullivan 235
recalled another property that took time to tear down because of the requirements of an 236
ordinance.237

238
12.    PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES239

240
13.    NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS241

242
14.    15 MINUTE RECESS243

244
15.    OLD BUSINESS245

246
15.a    Town Personnel Plan - Professional Development Policy for Town Employees (tabled from 247
02/28/18 Town Council Meeting)248

249
Chairman Sullivan moved, second by Councilor Ross, to remove Town Personnel Plan, 250
Professional Development Policy, from the table.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.  251

16



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 6

252
Councilor Miville stated that town employees who go on trips with the use of grant money 253
should only be allowable if the employee uses their own vacation time.  Chairman Sullivan 254
said more defined language needed to be developed and this item might be addressed 255
during a workshop session.256

257
Director Soucie said there is a section in the personnel plan on professional development.  258
She read through Section 13 and said it only addresses reimbursement for someone who is 259
taking classes; more specific to educational courses.  In response to Councilor Winterton, 260
Director Soucie said that each department has a training and development budget line and 261
that when employees attend training they are on town time.  If the training is outside normal 262
business hours, the employee is given time and one half.263

264
Councilor Ross said “training is training – development is not training”.  He said he doesn’t 265
see going to a foreign country as training.  A clear policy must be developed beyond any 266
contractual agreement.  267

268
Councilor Winterton suggested directing the Town Administrator to have staff investigate 269
professional development and bring back a potential addition to the personnel plan and then 270
the Council can discuss and decide what professional development is and perhaps add 271
guidance to the Personnel Plan, or describe what the parameters of professional 272
development are.  Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Giotas, to have 273
Administration bring back to the Council the definition of professional and personal 274
development for possible inclusion on how professional development will be addressed and/ 275
or allocated.  276

277
Councilor Miville said his point, regardless of definitions, is that employees on “professional 278
development” trips should use their vacation time.  Chairman Sullivan said more clarification 279
is required on what professional development is and how is should be covered.280

281
Councilor Winterton said he didn’t think this was something the Council could address tonight 282
without more information.  Councilor Miville said he is trying to address the concern of many 283
citizens.  Chairman Sullivan said that anyone sitting on the Council has the same desires and 284
those concerns can best be addressed via the development of a personnel policy.  Councilor 285
Miville said employees should not be able to take vacation time when going on foreign trips.  286

287
A vote on the motion was called.  Motion passed 6-1 [Councilor Miville opposed].288

289
Councilor Miville moved, second by Councilor Ross, that all town employees who are allowed 290
to take trips using grant funds for personal development must use their personal, accrued 291
leave time.  Councilor Miville said he doesn’t begrudge anyone using grant money for a trip292
but such trips must provide a public benefit for the citizens of Hooksett.  293

294
Councilor Ross said any contract starts with definitions; without definitions a contract is void295
and sick time is not something one should use for vacation.  He said “we must be careful 296
when passing rules, especially when it comes to dealing with people”.  He cautioned 297
“treading carefully when dealing with contracts”.  298

299
Councilor Giotas said he agreed with Councilor Miville concerning use of leave and trips out 300
of the country.  He said justification should be provided on how it impacts the town and the 301

17



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 7

employee.  Councilor Levesque reminded everyone that the former Police Chief went to FBI 302
training for an extended period and asked how that was paid for.  He said any training or 303
development should benefit the town.  Councilor Winterton said he was hesitant to include 304
language in the Personnel Plan that could put the town at risk.  Certain statements must be 305
evaluated by legal and human resources.306

307
Chairman Sullivan said the intent is correct but more information is needed before voting.  308
Councilor Miville said definitions are restrictive; these kinds of things are prurient; i.e., you 309
know it when you see it that it is wrong.  Councilor Ross said it has to be objective; “know it 310
when you see it” is subjective.  He said “we want it to be restrictive and when making a 311
promise to someone, you need to tell them exactly what they have to do”.312

313
Chairman Sullivan said “we don’t know what the definitions will be”.  Once defined, then the 314
Council can say this or that will or will not be allowed.  Councilor Winterton said he is voting 315
no on this motion which doesn’t mean he doesn’t care about taxpayers or that he will not 316
have input when someone puts in a request.317

318
A vote on the motion was called.  Roll Call #4:  Councilor Walczyk-no, Councilor Levesque-319
no, Councilor Ross-no, Councilor Miville-yes, Councilor Winterton-no, Councilor Giotas-no, 320
Chairman Sullivan-no.  Motion failed 1-6 [Councilor Miville in favor].321

322
15.b    Community Profile - 1) Pavilliion and 2) Blight Properties (tabled from 02/28/18 323
Town Council Meeting)324
Community Profile.pdf325

326
327

Councilor Miville said he received a request from a citizen to include crosswalk signs on 328
Beauchesne Drive.  Chairman Sullivan asked Administration to look into including cross walk 329
signs at either Beauchesne Drive or Grant Street.330

331
Chairman Sullivan moved, second by Councilor Giotas, to remove this item from the table.  332
Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.333

334
Councilor Miville said the Animal Crackers property is not the only blight property in town, and 335
asked what the Code Enforcement Officer’s practice is on identifying such properties.  336
Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Ross, to direct the Town Administrator to 337
ask the Code Enforcement Officer to come before the Council to report on how he addresses 338
blight properties.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.  Councilor Ross said perhaps the 339
establishment of an ordinance is needed.340

341
Councilor Miville said he was following up on the erection of a pavilion at the request of a 342
citizen and that came up in the Community Profile.  Chairman Sullivan said such a venture 343
would require a warrant article and perhaps the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee 344
should look into it.  Councilor Miville said if the Parks and Recreation committee is charged 345
now; a report could be ready by September.346

347
16.    NEW BUSINESS348

349
16.a    March 13, 2018 Elections350

351
18



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 8

Finance Director Soucie said the default budget totals $18,250,895.  She asked the Council 352
what they wishes to do about the Fun in the Sun rates.  She said she will bring forward line 353
item transfers as necessary.  In response to Councilor Giotas, Director Soucie said there will 354
be savings due to staff vacancies.  Councilor Miville said he heard the town was out of funds 355
for plowing.  Director Soucie said that was not accurate; that at the end of February the sand 356
and salt budget lines had about $50,000 and Director Boyce expects that the town will spend 357
that and be over by about $10,000.  March is heavy; April and May should be lower in cost.  358
Director Soucie said “we have never taken from paving to cover plowing”.359

360
16.b    Discussion on Recycling Markets361
Staff Report - Recycling Markets-Glass.docx362

363
Diane Boyce, DPW Director, came forward indicating that the recycling market has totally 364
crashed and Casella Waste wants the town to sign a contract.  She said communities 365
everywhere are trying to figure out what to do about budgets, and the continuance of 366
recycling since the recycling of glass is a problem throughout New England.  The only glass 367
recycling market has closed its doors.  She said glass recycling has always been an issue 368
and it doesn’t make sense to continue.  If it can’t be used, glass will ultimately be landfilled or 369
incinerated.  She sought the Council’s guidance on whether it was time to ask residents to 370
start throwing glass away with trash instead of recycling it.371

372
Councilor Levesque said that glass is the heaviest in recycling and even if recycling comes 373
back, they don’t want glass.  Councilor Winterton made note of the cost of recycling versus 374
the cost of regular trash.  He said “if we could reduce the number of trucks that go out, we 375
could reduce costs”.  He suggested saving $8 a ton until something changes.376

377
Councilor Ross stated that people were told “we were going to save money and that hasn’t 378
come near to being true”.  He continued saying “here we are now; it’s cheaper to get rid of 379
trash rather than recycling”.380

381
The Council engaged in a lengthy discussion on the matter – from the trucks being used, 382
costs and staffing.  It was noted that cardboard is worth recycling.  Director Boyce said she 383
has an RFP prepared and is looking for guidance from the Council.  Chairman Sullivan stated 384
that between 2012 and now there have been savings in eliminating position(s).  Councilor 385
Winterton said “whatever we did in the past id in the past; we own recycling trucks today.  386
When the decision was made to recycle, it was not made knowing that recycling would be 387
more costly than trash.  The question is what do we do today”.  He suggested allowing 388
Director Boyce to send out RFPs since times have changed and the Council needs to look at 389
options under a new environment.390

391
In response to Councilor Ross, Director Boyce said trash tons amounted to approximately 392
300 a month and recycling 1,500 a year.  Councilor Ross asked “do we continue to throw 393
good money after bad?”  Councilor Winterton said the issue is not recycling; it is where to 394
dump it in the most cost-efficient way.  Chairman Sullivan said he wants people to know what 395
they are doing.  Director Boyce said that every community is in the same boat.  She 396
recommended that the town begin to inform residents that glass waste be disposed of with 397
the trash.  The Council advised that Director Boyce proceed accordingly and in the best 398
interest of the town.399

400
16.c    discussion of SNHU proposed large sign and ZBA application for a variance 401 19



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 9

staff report - march 14 2018 Discuss SNHU large sign application for a variance to ZBA.docx402
SNHU Sign ZBA application 3-13-18 public hearing.pdf403
ZBA Applicant for a Variance - SNHU Proposed Sign Town Response Memo 3-5-18.pdf404

405
Director Soucie asked the Council if they had comments regarding SNHU’s application for a 406
variance in connection with the installation of a 200.8 SF roof sign.  She said the sign was 407
half way in Manchester and half way in Hooksett.  Councilor Winterton questioned whether 408
the sign would be taxable since it will sit on top of a dormitory.  He suggested that the matter 409
be discussed at a SNHU Subcommittee meeting.  Councilor Ross said he doesn’t like it 410
because it impacts the appearance of the town negatively.  He questioned whether fire 411
fighters could reach the roof.  Councilor Winterton moved, second by Chairman Sullivan, to 412
extend the meeting to 10:00 p.m.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0. Councilor Winterton 413
stated that SNHU is putting up the sign to follow upon the rest of their online campaign.  414
Chairman Sullivan said the ordinance should stand as is and no exemptions should be 415
granted; stick to the rules.  That is the consensus of the Council.416

417
17.    SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS418

419
Councilor Ross said the Conservation Commission met Monday night.  Commission got grant 420
money for the construction of a parking lot which was originally in one place that wasn’t 421
written into the easement.  Moved to end of the road and were led to believe that would be 422
acceptable.  Abutter opposed.  423

424
Councilor Winterton said the Planning Board met and considered two items – one being a 425
new bank in front of Granite Hill.  He said Eckart and Johnson Plumbing is moving to 426
Hooksett.  They bought A&E off Londonderry Turnpike.  427

428
Chairman Sullivan talked about the progress on the Old Town Hall.  Nick Germain provided 429
photographs.  The slides showed the work in progress.  They are now discussing 430
requirements for HVAC and electricity.  Mr. Germain said he met with LCHIP today and that 431
the project was going well so far.432

433
Councilor Giotas said they were getting an estimate for some structural work and there was 434
discussion about hiring a construction management service to help figure out what to do next 435
– heating, lighting, plumbing, and flooring.  Chairman Sullivan said there is still a lot of work to 436
be done.  437

438
Councilor Giotas said Recycling and Transfer met.  The Heritage Commission will meet next 439
week.440

441
18.    PUBLIC INPUT442

443
19.    NON-PUBLIC SESSION444

445
19.a    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee 446
or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.447

448
19.b    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the 449
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.450

451 20



TC Meeting Minutes 031418-U 10

M. Miville motioned to enter non-public session of 03/14/18 at 10:10pm. Seconded by J. Sullivan.452
453

Roll Call454
A. Walczyk – yes455
J. Levesque – yes456
D. Ross – yes457
D. Winterton – yes458
J. Giotas – yes459
M. Miville - yes460
J. Sullivan - yes461
Vote 7 in favor.462

463
J. Sullivan motioned to exit non-public session of 03/14/18 at 10:19pm. Seconded by D. Ross.464
Vote unanimously in favor.465

J. Sullivan motioned to seal the non-public minutes of 03/14/18. Seconded by D. Winterton. 466
Vote unanimously in favor.467

468
469

20.    ADJOURNMENT470
J. Sullivan motioned to adjourn the public session of 03/14/18 at 10:20pm. Seconded by D. Ross.471
Vote unanimously in favor.472

473
Note:  The town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for 474
documents referred to in the minutes, reading file materials, and/or ancillary documents that 475
the Town Council has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council’s prior approval of 476
the documents.477

478
Respectfully submitted,479

480
481

Suzanne Beauchesne482
Recording Clerk483

484

21



Staff Report
Title: Acceptance of Donation

Date: 3/28/18
Background Discussion of Issues
The NH Department of Safety Homeland Security and Emergency Management has awarded 
the Hooksett Police Department an HSEEP (Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation 
Program) grant for active shooter training.  The total amount awarded by this grant will not 
exceed $10,686.37.  This money will be used to reimburse the Town of Hooksett the cost 
associated with the sworn personnel’s overtime rate of pay working overtime to attend and cover 
shifts as a result of this exercise.  This exercise is scheduled to be held on April 24, 25 and 26, 
2018.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Motion to accept the donation of up to $10,686.37 from the NH Department of Safety 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett
Police Department per RSA 31:95-b: III(a) and to return the funds to the Police Department’s 
2017-2018 or 2018-2019 fiscal budget under the overtime line.

Fiscal Impact
No fiscal impact

Prepared By: Lt. Sargent
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



Staff Report
DRA Form MS 232- Report of Appropriations Actually Voted

3/28/2018
Background Discussion of Issues

The Town is required to complete the State Form MS-232 Report of Appropriations Actually 
Voted.   This report informs the State on the gross appropriations that were passed at town 
meeting.  Revenues are reported to the State in the fall.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)

Motion to accept and sign the “2018 MS-232 Report of Appropriations Actually Voted” totaling 
of $24,861,418.

Fiscal Impact
Estimated Town share of the Tax Rate is $7.01.  This is an estimated increase of $0.18 per 
$1,000 over the current Town share of $6.83.

Prepared By: Christine Soucie, Finance Director
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

33



34



35



36



37



Staff Report
Title: Fun in the Sun Budget

Date: 3-28-18
Background Discussion of Issues
Information ……

The Council voted to support the base tuition for the Fun in the Sun Day Camp for $125.00 
based on the budget which included a $12,500 subsidy.  Now that we are in a default budget, 
that subsidy is not included.  Registration for camp starts on 4/2.  

Without the subsidy camp tuition will have to be raised to $135.00.

The Council should discuss if tuition base fee should be changed.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Information ….

I recommend that the Council discuss the possibility of raising the tuition for Fun In the Sun

Fiscal Impact
No impact ???????

Prepared By: ?????? Diane Boyce
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

38



Staff Report
Title: Town Council Minutes – Draft to Final Acceptance

Date: 03/28/18
Background Discussion of Issues
The Town Council, at their meeting of 03/14/18, discussed the subject matter of Town Council minutes from draft 
form to final acceptance.  This subject matter has now been placed as a new business item on the Council’s 
03/28/18 agenda for clarification/change in process and to determine if the Town Council Rules of Procedures 
should be updated.

RSA 91-A Right-to-Know (RTK) Law governs the process of public entity meeting minutes from draft form to the 
public body final acceptance.  See attached Right-to-Know Law Memorandum sections e, f, g and h.

The Town of Hooksett Town Council current minutes process:
1. At Meeting:  Recording Clerk types minutes during the meeting (Wednesday night)
2. Draft Minutes (within 5 business days of meeting):  Recording Clerk, between Wednesday night and the 

following Wednesday by 8:00am, completes DRAFT version of minutes, posts on Town website, and 
submits to Administration for inclusion in Council’s next agenda packet (this process, as appropriate,
includes receiving public meeting minutes’ attachments AND non-public meeting minutes enter/exit/seal 
motions from Administration).

3. Council Final Acceptance of Minutes:  Council, at their next regularly scheduled meeting, reviews and 
accepts (with or without edits) the minutes of the prior meeting

4. Recording Clerk Final Minutes: Recording Clerk updates the DRAFT minutes with motion from #3 above 
and reposts as FINAL.  Final minutes are submitted in paper version to the Town Clerk for archives to 
comply with RSA 33-A Record Retention.  RTK has no time limit for this process; however 
Administration has notified Recording Clerk no later one month from #3 above.

RTK is silent on amending prior final accepted minutes by the public body.  It is the Town’s perspective that if 
there is an error in a final accepted motion, that the motion should be corrected and those minutes should be 
reposted.  However, if there is an error in a final accepted discussion description, these errors should not be 
corrected.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Town Council to review the current Town Council minutes’ process from draft to final 
acceptance in compliance with RSA 91-A Right-to-Know Law and motion to keep process as is 
OR motion for changes.

Fiscal Impact
None.

Prepared By: Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

39



40


	Town Council Agenda
	2016-888 - TC Minutes 022818-U (2).docx
	2016-883 - TC Minutes 031418-U.docx
	2016-872 - Staff Report - Active Shooter.docx
	2016-872 - Audit & Grant terms.pdf
	2016-887 - SR MS 232 2018.docx
	2016-887 - 2018 MS-232.pdf
	2016-889 - Staff Report - Fun in the Sun Base Tuition.docx
	2016-891 - Staff Report - Town Council Minutes - Draft to Final Acceptance.docx
	2016-891 - RSA91A-TC Minutes 032818.pdf

